Water Advisory Committee: August 13, 2025

TOWN OF OAK RIDGE
WATER ADVISORY COMMITTEE
AUGUST 13,2025 -1:30 P.M.

OAK RIDGE TOWN HALL
MINUTES
Members present Staff present
Spencer Sullivan, Chair Sean Taylor, Planning Director
Brian Hall, Vice Chair (Arrived at 1:38 p.m.) Sandra Smith, Asst. Town Mgr./Town Clerk
Francis Disney
Todd Hall
Paul Magnabosco Others present
Jim Harton, Council liaison (Non-voting member) John Greer, Envirolink

Jim Kinneman, Mayor (Non-voting member)

1)

2)

3)

4)

WELCOME: Chair Spencer Sullivan called the meeting to order at 1:33 p.m.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Paul Magnabosco moved to approve the meeting agenda, and Francis
Disney seconded. The motion was passed unanimously (4-0).

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES: Todd Hall motioned to approve the July 9, 2025, meeting
minutes. Paul Magnabosco seconded, and the motion was passed unanimously (4-0).

REVIEW/RECOMMEND REVISED COMMUNITY WELL THRESHOLD AMENDMENT

Sullivan introduced the discussion regarding revisions proposed to the ordinance governing
thresholds for community wells, hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of the
minutes. He explained that the suggested revisions were based on input from developers at the
last Committee meeting and had been reviewed by the Town’s attorney, Michael Thomas.
Thomas expressed legal concerns, noting that state law requires property owners to obtain a
permit for a private well when public water is unavailable, but does not mandate connection to
a public water system unless the owner elects to do so and the existing well remains compliant
and in use. Sullivan noted that an alternative option would be to require developers to install
dry lines to accommodate future connections. Mayor Jim Kinneman noted that developer Kevan
Combs had indicated that developers would be able to require dry line installations. Although
Thomas opposed this, Sullivan believed there might be some leeway to negotiate the
requirement, even if mandating connection to a dry line remained unenforceable. He identified
a need for further discussion with Thomas on the matter and suggested that the Committee
either table the issue until their next meeting or remove the option for dry lines in the proposed
revisions, instead focusing on requiring community wells and reducing the lot threshold from
30 to 20 or 15.

Councilman Jim Harton asked if clarification regarding dry line installations could be sought
from Comb’s attorney. Sullivan reinforced the notion that more discussion was needed. He
pointed out that the section of the ordinance handling distance requirements to wells for
connection would be reviewed by the Planning & Zoning Board and subsequently by Town



Water Advisory Committee: August 13, 2025

Council and that the question of threshold requirements would be handled separately. Francis
Disney commented that fewer lots per connection would be cost-ineffective for smaller
subdivisions, and Brian Hall agreed that reducing the requirement for number of lots in a
subdivision would discourage water system development.

Kinneman condensed the discussion into two separate considerations of whether the Town
could legally mandate distribution lines with no connections and whether the Town could
legally mandate connection to the public water source once it had been made available. Sullivan
emphasized that state law prohibited requiring connection to public water when a private
system is already in place. He referenced Stokesdale’s practice of requiring new developments
to connect to a planned water line. He also noted an unfinished discussion comparing the cost to
developers of community and individual well construction.

Planning Director Sean Taylor noted that Thomas’ stance aimed to avoid lawsuits but
maintained that, given the unclear legal precedent, it was acceptable to proceed until
challenged. Harton agreed, questioning whether proceeding was worth the potential risk of
legal challenges.

Disney was amenable to the notion of requiring dry lines. Todd Hall noted that other developers
had similarly condoned dry lines but were not in favor of reducing the required number of lots
for connection to 15. He noted Combs’ suggestion to include water connection requirements in
a development’s covenants, which Assistant Town Manager/Town Clerk Sandra Smith said
Thomas found objectionable. Kinneman asserted that requiring water connections would have
to be voluntary on the part of the developer. Paul Magnabosco repeated Comb’s suggestion to
include the requirement in a deed restriction which is more enforceable than in an HOA
covenant.

Disney favored maintaining a 30-lot requirement in the threshold. Sullivan pointed out that
community wells are required in TCR (Town Center Residential) and RPD (Rural Preservation
Districts) zones to keep the well separate from the septic system. Sullivan clarified that the
proposed revision would state that subdivisions containing 15 to 30 lots would have the option
of installing either community wells or dry lines, pointing out that those with more than 30 lots
would be required to install community wells. He stressed that the committee’s current focus
was to consider Section 30-863 (e).

Brian Hall stepped out of the meeting at 2:00 p.m.

Further discussion established that the estimated cost to a developer to install dry lines was
similar to installing individual wells and that the Town did not have the legal standing to make
this a requirement, either through conditional zoning or by mandating that the conditions be
included in deed restrictions.

Brian Hall re-joined the meeting at 2:05 p.m.
Sullivan noted that public water system connection could only be mandated if the well serving
the property failed and was irreparable or if the drinking water serviced by that well was

contaminated or under threat of contamination.

Todd Hall made a motion to approve the revisions to Section 30-863 (e) with the provision to remove
the requirement for dry line connection stated in section (e).



Water Advisory Committee: August 13, 2025

Disney favored placing the onus on the developer to determine water source connectivity while
Magnabosco advocated performing more investigation into the legal restrictions to require
connection to dry lines before crafting a motion to approve section (e).

Todd Hall removed his motion from consideration.

5)

Sullivan suggested tabling further discussion of the revised community well threshold
amendment to the following meeting.

Magnabosco agreed to represent the Water Advisory Committee at the August 28, 2025,
Planning & Zoning Board meeting.

REVIEW/RECOMMEND REVISED FEE SCHEDULE

Sullivan stated that the proposed fee schedule revisions were needed to facilitate a discussion
to connect the Commons Shopping Center water system to the municipal system. He noted that
the Commons would classify as a bulk user requiring a larger meter and a discounted rate
relative to residential users. He stated that Envirolink proposed a wholesale rate ten percent
lower than the residential rate, and Kinneman observed that this would be a substantial
reduction from the rate presently charged to the Commons. Sullivan questioned if a monthly
base charge needed to be created for a meter for a six-inch water line. He noted that the Town
would fund the meter installation, and the expense would be transferred to the customer and
amortized through monthly payments. Kinneman added that the Commons’ owner would likely
need to seek approval from the Utility Commission to adjust water rates for his customers,
reflecting the reduction from $13.15 to the Town'’s proposed rate of $6.75. John Greer suggested
postponing the base charge for a six-inch meter until it was determined to be necessary, noting
that the meter size would depend on the flow rate, which had not yet been established. Sullivan
stated that Wooten Company had been asked to study the average monthly flow rate to
determine the meter size.

Francis Disney made a motion to accept the Revised Fee Schedule, and Brian Hall seconded. The
motion passed unanimously (5-0).

6)

Kinneman stated that he would notify the Commons’ owner, Philip Cooke, of the fee schedule,
which remained subject to Council approval.

Magnabosco suggested that other miscellaneous charges and deposits required clarification
before engaging with Cooke and inquired where the deposit would be secured. Sullivan noted
that the water system management plan contained the necessary details and emphasized that
Cooke’s intent to commit to the connection would need to be established before negotiating the
specifics of system management.

REVIEW/RECOMMEND WOOTEN PROPOSAL FOR DESIGN/ENGINEERING OF TOWN CORE
LOOP

Sullivan explained that Wooten had prepared two proposals for consideration. The first
proposal contained the full Town Core loop beginning at the intersection of NC 150 and Linville
Road, continuing south along NC 68, and concluding with a northwest turn back onto Linville
Road. He pointed out that this proposal took into consideration the water lines for all hydrants
and applicable engineering considerations. He later noted that Wooten’s opinion of probable
cost to construct the full loop was $1.75 million which included a sizeable contingency. Sullivan

3



Water Advisory Committee: August 13, 2025

described the second proposal as extending only from the intersection of NC 150 and Linville
Road to the Commons Shopping Center’s entrance, and later noted that the opinion of probable
cost for this project was $420,339. He pointed out that the existing water system located behind
the Lowes Foods store extended across NC 150 into Marketplace Drive and continued under NC
68 to the Village Stores. He noted that Wooten would advise on where best to connect to the
existing water line for service. He emphasized that the Town would not distribute water by
connecting to the existing line but would instead sell bulk water to the Commons, making Cooke
solely responsible for water distribution, maintenance and billing issues. Harton verified that
the Commons Shopping Center’s water line would service approximately 130 customers.

The question of project funding was raised and Sullivan noted that $1 million had previously
been budgeted and placed in a restricted fund, with part of it to remain in reserve to cover
credits earmarked for customer system connections. He suggested that the Committee
recommend that Council approve the engineering of the full Town Core loop at a quoted cost of
$98,000. Kinneman pointed out that $125,000 had already been budgeted in the Capital budgt
for water main engineering. Sullivan stated that an additional $360,000 was estimated for
construction costs. Magnabosco suggested that the contingency amount would decrease once
the water line was installed and the location of the traffic roundabout at Marketplace Drive was
determined. Sullivan indicated that Bruce had obtained the layout of the Shopping Center’s
water system. Kinneman added that construction cost would be influenced by the connection’s
location, whether by the ABC store or further behind Lowes Foods store. Hall advocated
building the entire loop, noting the potential for increased revenue from the Commons’ water
system and Kinneman added that offering connections to Village Woods’ residents could bring
in twenty additional customers. He supported engineering the entire loop to make the project
shovel-ready for construction, thereby making the process of grant funding more viable. He
added that the potential to expand the service radius and offer more connections would be
greater with the full Town Core loop. Sullivan suggested securing a letter of intent from Cooke.

Kinneman raised the question of the project’s timeframe and if pipe could be connected to the
main while construction was underway. Sullivan noted that Wooten had indicated that it would
take two months to engineer the water main but that it could take up to four months to obtain
state approval for the project.

Chair Spencer Sullivan made a motion to recommend proceeding with the engineering of the Town
Core Loop, and Francis Disney seconded.

Todd Hall suggested adding verbiage to the motion indicating the intent to construct the loop
once engineered. Kinneman noted that Council could only consider the engineering of the water

main and advocated keeping the motion focused on the single action of proceeding with the
engineering design.

Harton suggested adding a second Council review of the water main project to include the Town
Core loop, in order to reinforce Council’s support for advancing the project from engineering to
construction.

The vote was unanimous (5-0).

Brian Hall left the meeting at 2:55 p.m.

7) MARKETING DISCUSSION



8)

Water Advisory Committee: August 13, 2025

Smith reintroduced the brochure created to market the Town’s municipal water system and
highlighted the changes made. She noted that the second phase of the project had not been
incorporated in the brochure’s information due to its presently undetermined state. Sullivan
suggested adding information regarding the Town Core loop to the brochure while Magnabosco
cautioned against adding information that had not yet been confirmed.

Sullivan suggested that the Committee hold information sessions in the Fall for the public. The
Committee settled on November 13, 4:30 p.m. to 6:30 p.m. and January 10, 2026, 10:00 a.m. to
12:00 p.m. to hold the information sessions.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

e Frank Carroll, 1389 Forsyth Road, suggested rescheduling the information meetings to
the evening hours to accommodate work schedules. He advocated monitoring cost
controls on the municipal water system project.

9) ADJOURN

Paul Magnabosco made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 3:26 p.m., and Todd Hall seconded.
The motion passed unanimously (5-0).

Spencer Sullivan
Chair



